
 

 

                               Jefferson Area 
Regional Transit Partnership (RTP) 

Workshop Meeting 
AGENDA 

4:00 p.m., Thursday, October 22,  2020 
 

 Zoom Video Meeting Option 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85438642291?pwd=cWhRY2tYeXJyV0FFc3BCM3VaWFlqdz09 
 

Call In Option: +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
Meeting ID: Meeting ID: 854 3864 2291 

Passcode: 729974 
 

Item Time† Description 
1 

4:00-
4:10 

          Call to Order 
2            Introductions 

3            Matters from the Public: Limit 3 minutes per speaker 
 

4 ✓ Minutes from August 27, 2020 

5 4:10-
4:15 Review of Strategic Plan 

6 4:15-
5:15 

Short Term Goal Setting 
• RTP Planning Grant Updates CTB Meeting October 20, 2020 
• Pandemic Impacts on Services 

o Immediate Needs (PPE’s, Staff & Rider Safety, Marketing) 
o Lessons Learned (What is working well and not so well) 
o Fare Free (Now and Future; Budget Implications) 
o Safety (Air vs Surface) (Infrastructure & Buildings) 
o Changes in Service (Creating gaps in service, Equity, adding services) 
o Unified Procurement (Fuel, technology, capital) 

• Ridership Reporting (See example ridership report) 

7 5:00-
5:45 

Long Term Goal Setting 
• Regional Visioning Plan 
• Umbrella Marketing & Branding 
• Growth in Service Areas & Land Use Planning 

10 
5:45 
5:55 
 

            Transit Service Provider Updates  
• CAT/Jaunt/UTS/Rideshare/Albemarle Schools 
• CAT Advisory Board Update (Opportunity to bring under RTP) 

11 5:55-
6:00 

Other Business 

12 6:00 Adjourn 
Next Meeting January 28, 2020 4:00 PM 

The Regional Transit Partnership (RTP) serves as an official advisory board, created by the City of Charlottesville, 

Albemarle County and JAUNT, in Partnership with the Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation to 

rovide recommendations to decision-makers on transit-related matters. 
Times are approximate 

✓ Requires a vote of the Partnership 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85438642291?pwd=cWhRY2tYeXJyV0FFc3BCM3VaWFlqdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85438642291?pwd=cWhRY2tYeXJyV0FFc3BCM3VaWFlqdz09


 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

(To be read before each public meeting) 
NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC MEETING  

 DUE TO COVID-19 STATE OF EMERGENCY 
 

This meeting of the Regional Transit Partnership is being held pursuant to Item 4.0-01 of the 
approved state budget (HB 29) that allows public bodies to hold electronic meetings in the 
current COVID-19 emergency, in that it is impracticable or unsafe to assemble in a single 
location and that the purpose of the meeting is to discuss or transact the business statutorily 
required or necessary to continue operations of the public body. 
 
This meeting is being held via electronic video and audio means through Zoom online meetings 
and is accessible to the public with close captioning and there will be an opportunity for public 
comment during that portion of the agenda. This meeting is also accessible by telephone 
conference call. 
 
Notice has been provided to the public through notice at the TJPDC offices, to the media, web 
site posting and agenda. 
 
The meeting minutes will reflect the nature of the emergency, the meeting was held by electronic 
communication means, and the type of electronic communication means by which the meeting 
was held. 
 
A recording of the meeting will be posted at www.tjpdc.org within 10 days of the meeting. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Does not have to be read. At discretion of the Chair) 
Online Meeting Protocol 



 

 

 
We welcome all members and visitors to this virtual meeting. 
A roll call of voting and non-voting members will be held to ensure a quorum is present.  
This meeting is being recorded as required by state code and will be placed on the TJPDC web 
site for public access. 
Please mute your telephone or computer until you are prepared to speak. We will initially try to 
allow members to speak openly after asking the chair for the floor. Should this become 
unorganized, we will mute everyone except the speaker as identified by the Chair and will ask 
that commissioners either use the raised hand function of Zoom or ask in the chat room to speak. 
Conference call attendees may use *9 on their telephones to “raise their hand” to speak. The 
chair will be notified and will call on you. 
During the open meeting, Motions and seconds may be presented without use of the hand or chat 
features. The chair will restate the motion with who motioned and who seconded. A discussion 
period will follow. To expedite votes, votes will be by voice unless undeterminable by the chair, 
who may call for a roll call vote. The chair shall ask for “all in favor of the motion” and then “all 
opposed”. The chair will identify those opposed to be recorded in the minutes. 
Community participants will be allowed to speak during the designated Public Hearing and 
Public Comment periods. They should follow the same guidelines of using the “raised hand” 
function or the chat function. Outside of these times, all visitors will be maintained on mute. 
Speakers will be limited to two minutes each. 
The Director and staff will assist in keeping time limits and requested speakers for the entire 
meeting. 
While precautions have been enacted, should the meeting be taken over from an outside entity, 
the chair may adjourn the meeting and notice be provided by email. To lessen this risk, all 
participants will be required to first enter a “waiting room” until identified, and then allowed in.  
We will share the staff’s screen providing viewing of the agenda documents until no documents 
are required. The view will go to face view at that time. 
Thank you for working with us on this electronic meeting format. We are hopeful in that it will 
provide us a new means to connect with more citizens and offer commissioners an alternate way 
to engage. 

 



  

Page 1 of 5 
 

Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 
POB 1505, 401 E. Water Street, Charlottesville, VA 22902 www.tjpdc.org 

(434) 979-7310 phone ● (434) 979-1597 fax ● info@tjpdc.org email 
_________________________________________________________________ 

 
Thomas Jefferson Regional Transit Partnership 

August 27, 2020 
4:00 p.m. 

Via Zoom Conference Call 
 
Committee – Voting Members   Staff & Other 

Diantha McKeel, Albemarle Co - Chair 
Lloyd Snook, City of Charlottesville (absent) 
Lucas Ames, JAUNT Urban- Vice Chair 
Randy Parker, JAUNT Rural (Louisa) 

Bea LaPisto-Kirtly, Albemarle County 

Nikuyah Walker, City of Charlottesville 

Neil Sherman, DRPT  
Becca White, UTS 
 
Non-Voting& Alternates 
Karen Davis, JAUNT 
Brad Sheffield, JAUNT 

Garland Williams, CAT 

Juwhan Lee, CAT 

Trevor Henry, Albemarle County 

Kim McManus, PVCC (absent) 

Jim Foley, ACPC 

Alison DeTuncq, CTB  

Chris Rowland, JAUNT 

Sally LeBeau, UVA Hospital (absent) 

 
Call to Order 
Chip Boyles called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 
 
Mr. Boyles read the legal statement allowing the meeting to be held virtually/electronically due 
to circumstances beyond the RTP’s control. She also described the guidelines by which the 
meeting would proceed. 
 
Matters from the Public 
None 
 
Minutes from June 25, 2020 
Ms. White noted that on page 3, “Mr. Williams” was spelled incorrectly in the third paragraph.  
She also noted that on page 3, she would like that clarification made that UTS only has one route 
for employees is only for the Summer of 2020. She would send verbiage in the Zoom chat.  
 
Ms. McKeel made a motion to approve the minutes with those changes and Ms. LaPisto-Kirtly 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 

Chip Boyles, TJPDC 

Sara Pennington, Rideshare/TJPDC 

Jessica Hersh-Ballering, TJPDC 
Lucinda Shannon, TJPDC 
Sandy Shackelford, TJPDC 

Caetano de Campos Lopes, C3 
Jody Saunders, Jaunt 

Kevin McDermott, Albemarle County 

Andy Bowman, Albemarle County 

Neil Williamson 
Sean Tubbs 
David Holtzman 
Matthew Anderson 
Robin Munson 
 
 



  

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
Election of Officers 
Ms. LaPisto-Kirtley said she and Mr. Snook, members of the nominating committee, 
recommended Ms. Diantha McKeel as Chair and Mr. Lucas Ames as Vice Chair.  
 
Mr. Parker made a recommendation to close nominations. Ms. White seconded it. The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Boyles asked for a vote on the motion to elect Ms. McKeel as Chair and Mr. Ames as Vice 
Chair for FY21. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Boyles turned the meeting over to the new Chair. 
 
JAUNT On-Demand Services 
Mr. Sheffield provided the RTP with an update on the JAUNT OnDemand service with a 
presentation. They will be presenting to other organizations in the near future who have an 
interest in transit.  
 
Mr. Sheffield said there are five guiding principles for the new service: Responsive, Inclusive, 
Dynamic, Empower, Safe.  
 
He continued to explain the concept and said there will be more and more information coming 
out about it and to be on the lookout for it.  
 
Covid 19 Updates re: CAT/JAUNT/UTS 
Mr. Boyles said the video they are working on is not quite ready for public viewing, so it will 
have to be brought back to the Board in the future. It will probably hit the airwaves before it is 
brought to the Board, even though several members have already had a chance to review it. 
 
Mr. Boyles said the local governments have received a second phase of funding from the 
CARES Act.  
 
Mr. Sherman said many transit operations still have Covid restrictions throughout the state, 
although they differ from place to place.  
 
Ms. White says UTS continues to provide service and has expanded their employee service from 
the parking lot shuttle in anticipation of the residential students returning. They are still using the 
same precautions on the busses for the passengers. She thanked both Mr. Sheffield and Mr. 
Williams and their teams for working so well together to make transit work for the community. 
 
Mr. Williams said CAT hired a consultant in July and they have put temporary APCs on six 
busses which has provided important data not previously available. CAT will be using that 
information to use in the planning process, which is underway. He said that if CAT did not have 
the CARES money, he projected that they would potentially have a negative balance by the end 
of the year. He said he is hoping to get another round of CARES Act money 6-8 months from 
now. 
 



  

Page 3 of 5 
 

Ms. McKeel asked both CAT, JAUNT and UTS if there were any issues about passengers 
wearing masks. Mr. Williams said there are still a few riders who still refuse to wear masks, but 
JAUNT and UTS have not had any compliance issues.  
 
Mr. Foley said they have a policy in place for Via Elementary, and Mr. Williams said they have 
policies in place for schools that CAT with which they assist with school transportation.  
 
Mr. Foley said they had one case at Via and he was pleased with the communication about it. 
Mr. Williams said they had one case at CAT, and the driver is now back on duty. Ms. White said 
there is a Covid dashboard available off UVA’s main web page.  
 
Ms. Williams said there is regular testing available for their staff.  
 
Mr. Foley said they are going to clean the buses in between runs, but the biggest concern is the 
mask-wearing at this point.  
 
Mr. Williams said CAT is doing as much cleaning as they possibly can.  
 
TIP Amendment 
Ms. Shannon said the amendment added a $8.5 million to the road maintenance grouping for 
FY20. Mr. Boyles asked Ms. Shannon to send a memo to the Board to explain it further. He said 
it is a complicated process and he would like for the RTP for understand it more fully. 
 
Public Participation Plan 
Ms. Shackelford said the goal of this plan is to show the how the MPO will be meeting the 
minimum federal standards and to give the MPO as much flexibility as possible in their 
strategies to go above and beyond the minimum standards.  
 
She said the plan she shared with the board has updates that have been added. There is a 45-day 
public comment period that goes through September 10. She asked the board to feel free to give 
feedback to her or to Ms. Pennington, and to share the information to get additional comments 
from the public.  
 
RTP Committee Updates 
Transit Driver Appreciation Committee and Ridership Reporting 
Ms. Hersh-Ballering said the committee has working documents in a shared One Drive folder. 
She said everyone should have access to this folder and if you prefer to get the documents 
another way, please let her know. 
 
She reviewed the documents to be filled out by the committee members.  
 
RTP Staff Updates 
Virginia Breeze to Danville to DC 
Mr. Boyles said Virginia Breeze’s Piedmont Express is up and running. There is one stop at 
Arlington Blvd at 11:10 a.m. and 1:40 p.m. in Charlottesville. They leave Washington at 10:15 
a.m. and 2:40 p.m. It is roughly $40 for a one-way ticket to Union Station in DC.  
 



  

Page 4 of 5 
 

Mr. Sherman said there is a marketing firm they have employed to get out the information about 
the route. There is a restriction of 27 riders and masks are required. He also reported that Dulles 
is a major stop on that route.  
 
Afton Express 
Ms. Pennington said the Afton Express is waiting final approval from CTB and DRPT re: the 
demonstration grant. They have finalized the branding, logo and color scheme. They have gotten 
the route timings and stops finalized. They have an amendment to the contract with transit 
provider. They have begun development of the web pages and bus stops signs. They have also 
started identifying Park and Ride lots where they could advertise the service. Many things are on 
hold until the funding comes through, but there will be another stakeholder meeting once that 
happens.  
 
Transit Service Provider Updates 
CAT 
Mr. Williams said, like most transit providers, ridership is down because of Covid. CAT is down 
by almost 98K riders (about 69% down) since last year, but last month is was down nearly 75%, 
so it is slowing coming back up.  
 
He also said he has gotten feedback about the video and they will be making edits.  
 
JAUNT 
Mr. Sheffield said JAUNT’s ridership is down, but it is rebounding. They are focusing on how to 
focus on the new requirements.  
 
He said one of the bigger things they have been focusing on is how to bring Greene County 
Transit into the fold. Karen Davis has been tackling that and it is going extremely well.  
 
Rideshare 
Ms. Pennington said Rideshare is waiting on the finalized DRPT budget. Rideshare is working 
on updating the telework portfolio to get info to organizations so they can have a more 
formalized plan for moving forward.  
 
She also said the Agile Mile program has expanded and they are looking at adding single use 
trips to it. The trip planning tool has been updated as well.  
 
ACPS 
Mr. Foley said they are looking forward to the students coming back on September 8. They have 
spent a lot of time on routing. He also said he met with other directors across the state and found 
out that ACPS is doing what other school systems are doing. He reported that they will be 
delivering over 1,000 meals a day on top of transporting students. There is work for the drivers, 
but it may be doing something besides driving a school bus. It may be doing something at the 
schools instead.  
 
UTS 
Ms. White said UVA has demobilized the UBike program. She also said UVA lifted parking 
restrictions outside of the health care system for the past several months, and starting on 
Monday, September 1, the restrictions will be back in effect.  
 



  

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
CAT Advisory Board 
Mr. Lee said the board positions are still open with applications in the pipeline, but there was no 
other update.  
 
Other Business 
Regional Visioning Plan and Albemarle Plan 
Mr. Boyles reported both applications for these grants have been submitted, but as mentioned 
previously, they are waiting for the General Assembly to set the budget. Once that is complete, 
the DRPT can make recommendation to the CTB for awards and funding for the fiscal year.  
 
Ms. McKeel adjourned the meeting at 5:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















Table of Contents

7

Table of Contents

8

11

12

13

14

16

17

19

21

24

25

26

27

System Summary …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...…………………

Performance Indicators ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

SunLink

System Summary ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...………

Performance Indicators …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...………

Sun Van

Sun Tran

System Summary ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...………

Performance Indicators …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...………

Route Productivity By Route ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Route Performance …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...………………

Ridership Charts ………………………………………………………………...………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Ridership ……………………………………….……….……….……………….………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..………

Revenue ………………………………………………………………...………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..………

Sun Tran Appendix 

Annual Ridership …………………………………………………………………………………..………………………………………………………………………………..…………………



Table of Contents

8

Table of Contents

9

28

29

30

31

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

Preventable Accidents ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Glossary of Terms
Glossary of Terms …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...…………

Ridership ……………………………………….……….……….……………….………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..………

Revenue ………………………………………………………………...………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..………

Expenses …………………………………………………………………………………..………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………

Preventable Accidents ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Customer Service …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...…………

Customer Service …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...…………

Ridership Charts ………………………………………………………………...………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Daily Passenger Counts ………………………………………………………………...……………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Annual Ridership …………………………………………………………………………………..………………………………………………………………………………..…………………

Ridership Charts ………………………………………………………………...………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Sun Van Appendix 

Ridership ……………………………………….……….……….……………….………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..………

Revenue ………………………………………………………………...………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..………

Expenses …………………………………………………………………………………..………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………

Preventable Accidents ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Customer Service …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...…………

Expenses …………………………………………………………………………………..………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………

Sun Link Appendix 

Pass Revenue ………………………………………………………………...………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..





System Summary

11

Month to Date March
Current Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

Ridership
Total Route Passengers 1,187,166          1,295,753          (108,587) ‐8.4% 1,370,900          (183,734) ‐13.4%

Revenue
Total Route Passenger Revenue 868,243             1,014,185          (145,942) ‐14.4% 941,163             (72,920)$            ‐7.7%

Expenses
Total Expenses 4,442,337          6,298,078          (1,855,741) ‐29.5% 5,406,775          964,438$           17.8%

Miles
Revenue Miles 688,529             727,428             (38,899)           ‐5.3% 692,880             4,351                 0.6%
Deadhead Miles 96,743               101,411             (4,668)             ‐4.6% 91,060               (5,683)                ‐6.2%
Total Service Miles 785,272             828,839             (43,567)           ‐5.3% 783,940             (1,332)                ‐0.2%
Non‐Route Miles 17,622               14,514               3,108              21.4% 9,325                 (8,297)                ‐89.0%
Total Miles 802,894             843,353             (40,459)           ‐3.0% 793,265             (9,629)                2.0%

Revenue Hours 57,220               60,786               (3,566)             ‐5.9% 57,800               580                    1.0%
Service Hours 61,190               64,948               (3,758)             ‐5.8% 61,480               290                    0.5%

Year to Date March YTD
Current Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

Ridership
Total Route Passengers 10,850,792        11,590,277        (739,485) ‐6.4% 12,220,500        (1,369,708) ‐11.2%

Revenue
Total Route Passenger Revenue 8,241,531          8,471,126          (229,595) ‐2.7% 8,783,175          (541,644)$          ‐6.2%

Expenses
Total Expenses 42,598,013        43,960,658        (1,362,645) ‐3.1% 44,870,108        $2,272,095 5.1%

Miles
Revenue Miles 6,168,931          6,341,211          (172,280)         ‐2.7% 6,188,240          19,309               0.3%
Deadhead Miles 849,514             907,523             (58,009)           ‐6.4% 812,930             (36,584)              ‐4.5%
Total Service Miles 7,018,445          7,248,734          (230,289)         ‐3.2% 7,001,170          (17,275)              ‐0.2%
Non‐Route Miles 142,181             94,664               47,517            50.2% 73,915               (68,266)              ‐92.4%
Total Miles 7,160,626          7,343,398          (182,772)         ‐2.5% 7,075,085          (85,541)              ‐1.2%

Revenue Hours 511,453             530,387             (18,935)           ‐3.6% 516,150             4,697                 0.9%
Service Hours 546,048             569,183             (23,135)           ‐4.1% 548,940             2,892                 0.5%

Notes:  Prior year amount may vary due to corrections made after the publication.

March YTD Variance Variance

Variance VarianceMarch



Performance Indicators

12

Current Month March 2018 FY19 YTD FY18 YTD

1. Ridership 1,187,166            1,295,753            10,850,792          11,590,277         

2. Passenger Revenue 868,243               1,014,185            8,241,531            8,471,126           

3. Passenger per Revenue Mile 1.72                     1.78                     1.76                     1.58                    

4. Passenger per Revenue Hour 20.75                   21.32                   21.22                   20.17                  

5. Revenue per Passenger 0.73                     0.78                     0.76                     0.73                    

6. Revenue per Revenue Mile 1.26                     1.41                     1.34                     1.18                    

7. Revenue per Revenue Hour 15.17                   16.86                   16.11                   15.12                  

8. Farebox Recovery Ratio 19.5% 16.1% 19.3% 19.3%

9. Cost per Passenger 3.74                     4.86                     3.93                     3.79                    

10. Cost per Revenue Mile 6.45                     8.66                     6.91                     5.99                    

11. Cost per Revenue Hour 77.64                   103.61                 83.29                   76.51                  

12. Net Cost per Revenue Hour 62.46                   86.93                   67.17                   61.77                  

13. Miles Between Road Calls 21,129                 13,387                 13,260                 12,489                

14. Miles Between Bus Inspections 6,095                   5,883                   5,993                   5,918                  

15. Vehicle Accidents per 100,000 Miles 1.99                     4.03                     1.97                     3.01                    

16. Complaints per 100,000 Passengers 23.42                   23.92                   26.00                   24.20                  

17. Vehicles Operated in Maximum Service 190                      203                      202                      204                     

System Indicator



Route Performance 

13

ROUTE
TOTAL ROUTE 
PASSENGERS

ROUTE
REVENUE

TOTAL SERVICE 
MILES

TOTAL SERVICE 
HOURS

TOTAL COST 
ALLOCATION

NET COST PER 
REVENUE HOUR

PASSENGER PER 
REVENUE MILE

PASSENGER PER 
REVENUE HOUR

REVENUE PER 
REVENUE MILE

REVENUE PER 
REVENUE HOUR

SUBSIDY PER 
PASSENGER

1 40,779                    33,223$                  20,584 1,781                      127,342$                $55.93 2.24 24.23 $1.82 $19.74 $2.31
2 18,161                    13,892                    20,288 1,642                      118,494                  64.73                      0.92 11.24 0.70                        8.60                        5.76                       
3 56,397                    48,507                    46,174 3,330                      244,666                  64.83                      1.51 18.64 1.30                        16.03                      3.48                       
4 95,439                    74,569                    47,876 4,013                      288,151                  57.01                      2.32 25.48 1.81                        19.91                      2.24                       
5 17,783                    13,773                    17,951 1,418                      102,721                  64.86                      1.05 12.97 0.81                        10.04                      5.00                       
6 48,338                    35,507                    19,560 2,152                      149,283                  54.83                      2.67 23.29 1.96                        17.11                      2.35                       
7 58,981                    50,649                    45,061 3,151                      232,721                  62.15                      1.50 20.13 1.29                        17.29                      3.09                       
8 107,634                  86,501                    48,012 3,880                      280,123                  54.31                      2.69 30.19 2.16                        24.26                      1.80                       
9 50,164                    38,657                    38,493 3,083                      222,843                  63.63                      1.45 17.33 1.12                        13.35                      3.67                       
10 25,308                    19,089                    14,609 1,179                      85,136                    58.05                      1.82 22.24 1.38                        16.78                      2.61                       
11 85,218                    65,997                    46,557 3,660                      265,288                  56.96                      1.98 24.36 1.53                        18.86                      2.34                       
12 36,057                    24,784                    19,344 1,620                      116,327                  58.12                      1.99 22.89 1.37                        15.74                      2.54                       
15 30,423                    21,502                    27,011 2,373                      169,296                  64.39                      1.19 13.25 0.84                        9.37                        4.86                       
16 96,155                    72,094                    40,516 3,633                      258,426                  53.07                      2.55 27.39 1.91                        20.53                      1.94                       
17 51,422                    44,247                    42,211 2,971                      219,155                  61.57                      1.33 18.10 1.14                        15.58                      3.40                       
18 82,391                    51,165                    22,477 2,286                      160,051                  49.36                      4.00 37.35 2.49                        23.19                      1.32                       
19 20,834                    15,445                    9,034 994                         68,915                    55.78                      2.50 21.73 1.86                        16.11                      2.57                       
21 12,616                    8,255                      10,558 918                         65,551                    64.67                      1.28 14.24 0.84                        9.32                        4.54                       
22 10,175                    7,817                      10,160 808                         58,493                    64.94                      1.07 13.04 0.82                        10.02                      4.98                       
23 26,931                    21,438                    19,726 1,661                      119,195                  60.29                      1.43 16.61 1.14                        13.22                      3.63                       
24 12,791                    9,553                      7,423 599                         43,261                    57.91                      1.81 21.97 1.35                        16.41                      2.64                       
25 34,169                    27,120                    22,486 1,831                      132,011                  59.68                      1.66 19.44 1.31                        15.43                      3.07                       
26 17,681                    13,723                    17,009 1,032                      78,152                    63.96                      1.07 17.55 0.83                        13.62                      3.64                       
27 19,159                    15,392                    21,287 1,348                      101,275                  66.02                      0.94 14.73 0.76                        11.83                      4.48                       
29 27,294                    22,123                    20,510 1,575                      114,587                  61.23                      1.43 18.07 1.16                        14.65                      3.39                       
34 57,864                    44,322                    35,890 2,976                      214,029                  59.61                      1.75 20.32 1.34                        15.57                      2.93                       
37 13,524                    11,917                    14,989 1,137                      82,883                    69.58                      1.13 13.26 1.00                        11.68                      5.25                       
50 9,371                      7,174                      6,010 658                         45,644                    60.07                      1.64 14.63 1.26                        11.20                      4.11                       
61 11,240                    8,979                      11,810 829                         61,208                    64.44                      0.98 13.87 0.78                        11.08                      4.65                       

Total Non‐Express 
Route 1,174,297               907,413                  723,616                  58,536                    4,225,230               $59.57 1.79 21.09 $1.38 $16.29 $2.83

ROUTE
TOTAL ROUTE 
PASSENGERS

ROUTE
REVENUE

TOTAL SERVICE 
MILES

TOTAL SERVICE 
HOURS

TOTAL COST 
ALLOCATION

NET COST PER 
REVENUE HOUR

PASSENGER PER 
REVENUE MILE

PASSENGER PER 
TRIP

REVENUE PER 
REVENUE MILE

REVENUE PER 
REVENUE HOUR

SUBSIDY PER 
PASSENGER

101X 1,503                      3,099$                    3,821                      177                         14,172$                  $167.39 0.99 22.73 $2.03 $46.85 $7.36
102X 1,520                      2,533                      5,241 236                         19,026                    125.06                    0.52 11.52 0.86                        19.21                      10.85                     
103X 504                         519                         2,483 132                         10,253                    113.61                    0.35 5.89 0.36                        6.06                        19.30                     
104X 897                         1,844                      4,496 179                         14,857                    114.32                    0.37 7.88 0.76                        16.20                      14.51                     
105X 1,055                      1,746                      4,250 214                         16,841                    138.23                    0.58 9.66 0.96                        15.99                      14.31                     
107X 1,662                      3,158                      9,923 446                         35,994                    108.28                    0.27 5.48 0.52                        10.42                      19.76                     
108X 978                         2,041                      3,893 193                         15,216                    139.41                    0.64 10.35 1.33                        21.60                      13.48                     
109X 633                         1,119                      4,192 221                         17,179                    173.81                    0.40 6.85 0.71                        12.11                      25.36                     
110X 1,326                      2,341                      5,417 165                         14,849                    94.09                      0.29 9.97 0.52                        17.61                      9.44                       
201X 520                         1,018                      3,921 174                         14,077                    130.10                    0.24 5.18 0.46                        10.14                      25.11                     
203X 1,569                      3,448                      8,442 300                         25,725                    127.80                    0.34 9.00 0.75                        19.78                      14.20                     
204X 703                         1,559                      6,210 221                         18,917                    137.77                    0.21 5.58 0.47                        12.37                      24.69                     

Total Express 
Route 12,870                    24,426                    62,289                    2,656                      217,107                  $125.90 0.38 8.41 $0.72 $15.96 $14.97

Total Service 1,187,166               931,838$                785,905                  61,193                    4,442,337$             $61.35 1.72 20.75 $1.35 $16.28 $2.96



Route Productivity By Route

14

Rank Route Number Route Description Passengers per Hour

1 18 S. 6th Avenue 37.3
2 8 Broadway 30.2
3 16 Oracle / Ina 27.4
4 4 Speedway 25.5
5 11 Alvernon 24.4
6 1 Glenn/Swan 23.6
7 6 Euclid/ North First Avenue 23.3
8 12 10th/ 12th Avenue 22.9
9 10 Flowing Wells 22.2
10 24 12th Avenue 22.0
11 19 Stone 21.7
12 34 Craycroft / Ft Lowell 20.3
13 7 22nd Street 20.1
14 25 S. Park Avenue 19.4
15 3 6th Street / Wilmot 18.6
16 17 Country Club / 29th Street 18.1
17 29 Valencia 18.1
18 26 Benson0 Highway 17.6
19 9 Grant Road 17.3
20 23 Mission Road 16.6
21 27 Midvale Park 14.7
22 50 Ajo 14.6
23 21 West Congress / Silverbell 14.2
24 61 La Cholla 13.9
25 37 Pantano 13.3
26 15 Campbell Avenue 13.3
27 22 Grande 13.0
28 5 Pima Street / West Speedway 13.0
29 2 Cherrybell 11.2

FIXED ROUTE SYSTEM AVERAGE 21.1

Rank ROUTE NUMBER ROUTE DESCRIPTION PASSENGERS PER TRIP
1 203X Oro Valley / Aeropark Express 17.8
2 107X Oro Valley / Downtown Express 12.6
3 102X Ina Road Express 11.5
4 101X Golf Links Express 11.4
5 104X Marana Express 10.2
6 110X Rita Ranch / Downtown Express 10.0
7 105X Sunrise Express 8.0
8 204X NW / Aeropark Express 5.3
9 109X Tanque Verde Express 4.8
10 103X Oldfather Express 3.8
11 108X Broadway Express 2.8
12 201X Speedway / Aeropark Express 2.0

EXPRESS ROUTE SYSTEM AVERAGE 7.0





16

System Summary

Month to Date March
Current Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

Ridership
Total Route Passengers 88,786            91,690           (2,904)          ‐0.0317 90,200          (1,414) ‐1.6%

Revenue
Total Route Passenger Revenue 60,766$          50,571$          10,195$        20.2% 67,900$         (7,134)$             ‐10.5%

Expenses
Total Expenses 238,362$       298,439$       (60,077)$      ‐20.1% 368,716$       (130,354)$        ‐35.4%

Miles
Revenue Miles 16,997            17,369           (372) ‐2.1% 16,143          854 5.3%
Deadhead Miles 248                  248                 0 0.0% 248                0 0.0%
Total Service Miles 17,245            17,617           (372) ‐2.1% ‐                 17,245

Revenue Hours 2,179              2,227             (48) ‐2.2% 2,057             122 5.9%

Year to Date March YTD
Current Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

Ridership
Total Route Passengers 714,249          713,521         728               0.1% 704,400        9,849 1.4%

Revenue
Total Route Passenger Revenue 652,075$       409,978$       242,097$     59.1% 474,150$       177,925$          37.5%

Expenses
Total Expenses 2,684,660$    2,875,021$    (190,362)$    ‐6.6% 3,318,442$   (633,782)$        ‐19.1%

Miles
Revenue Miles 152,292 151,294 998 0.7% 146,504        5,788 4.0%
Deadhead Miles 2,192 2,192 0 0.0% 2,192             0 0.0%
Total Service Miles 154,484 153,486 998 0.7% 148,696        5,788 3.9%

Revenue Hours 19,524 19,470 54 0.3% 18,821          703 3.7%

Notes:  Prior year amount may vary due to corrections made after the publication.

March YTD Variance Variance

Variance VarianceMarch



17

Performance Indicators

Current Month March 2018 FY19 YTD FY18 YTD

1. Ridership 88,786 91,690 714,249 713,521

2. Passengers per Revenue Mile 5.22 5.28 4.69 4.71

3. Passengers per Revenue Hour 40.75 41.17 36.58 36.68

4. Cost per Passenger 2.68$                    3.25$            3.76$           4.19$           

5. Cost per Revenue Mile 14.02$                 17.18$          17.63$         19.03$         

6. Cost per Revenue Hour 109.39$               134.01$        137.51$      148.03$       

7. Miles Between Road Calls N/A N/A N/A N/A

8. Miles Between Streetcar Inspection 973 952 965 964

9. Total Preventable Accidents per 100,000 Miles 0 0 1 6

10. Total Complaints per 100,000 Passengers 16 20 15 17

System Indicator





19

System Summary

Month to Date March
Current Year Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

Ridership
Total Demand 60,827 63,961 (3,134) ‐4.9% 59,580 1,247 2.1%

Denials ‐                        ‐                       ‐                       0.0% ‐                         ‐                       0.0%
Missed Trips ‐                        ‐                       ‐                       0.0% ‐                         0 0.0%
Cancellations 11,437 11,768 (331) ‐2.8% 11,980 (543) ‐4.5%
No Shows 3,209 3,500 (291) ‐8.3% 3,530 (321) ‐9.1%
Total Passengers 46,181 48,693 (2,512) ‐5.2% 44,090 2,091 4.7%

ADA Passengers 44,108 46,615 (2,507) ‐5.4%
Optional ADA 2,073 2,078 (5) ‐0.2%
Percentage of Optional 4.5% 4.3%

Trips
ADA Trips 41,157 43,233 (2,076) ‐4.8%
Optional ADA Trips 1,871 1,877 (6) ‐0.3%
Total Trips 43,028 45,110 (2,082) ‐4.6% 40,560 2,468 6.1%

Revenue
Regular Fare Revenue 42,154                  40,544                 1,610                    4.0% 37,280                   4,874                   13.1%
Economy Fare Revenue 52,842                  57,545                 (4,703)                  ‐8.2% 52,784                   58                        0.1%
Total Fares Collected 94,996$               98,089$              (3,093)$               ‐3.2% 90,064$                4,932$                5.5%

Expenses
Total Expenses 1,446,876$           1,833,080$          386,204$              21.1% 1,368,273$            78,603$               5.7%

Miles
Revenue Miles 306,875 324,487 (17,612) ‐5.4% 340,710 (33,835) ‐9.9%
Deadhead Miles 63,245 65,094 (1,849) ‐2.8% 68,350 (5,105) ‐7.5%
Total Service Miles 370,120 389,581 (19,461) ‐5.0% 409,060 (38,940) ‐9.5%
Non‐Route Miles 1,246 1,762 (516) ‐29.3% 1,890 (644) ‐34.1%
Total Miles 371,366 391,343 (19,977) ‐5.1% 410,950 (39,584) ‐9.6%

Revenue Hours 22,964 24,820 (1,856) ‐7.5% 26,060 (3,096) ‐11.9%
Service Hours 26,916 28,887 (1,970) ‐6.8% 30,330 (3,414) ‐11.3%

Notes:  Prior year amount may vary due to corrections made after the publication.

March Variance Variance



20

System Summary

Year to Date March YTD
Current Year Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

Ridership
Total Demand 538,393 551,726 (13,333) ‐2.4% 605,630 (67,237) ‐11.1%

Denials ‐                       ‐                   ‐                   0.0% ‐                       ‐                    0.0%
Missed Trips 7 11 (4) ‐36.4% ‐                       7 0.0%
Cancellations 101,642 105,321 (3,679) ‐3.5% 121,720 (20,078) ‐16.5%
No Shows 29,809 30,541 (732) ‐2.4% 35,750 (5,941) ‐16.6%
Total Passengers 406,935 415,853 (8,918) ‐2.1% 448,160 (41,225) ‐9.2%

ADA Passengers 388,641 398,139 (9,498) ‐2.4%
Optional ADA 18,294 17,714 580 3.3%
Percentage of Optional 4.5% 4.3%

Trips
ADA Trips 362,864 370,799 (7,935) ‐2.1%
Optional ADA Trips 16,525 16,108 417 2.6%
Total Trips 379,389 386,907 (7,518) ‐1.9% 412,330 (32,941) ‐8.0%

Revenue
Regular Fare Revenue 360,312                327,200           33,112             10.1% 379,144               (18,832)             ‐5.0%
Economy Fare Revenue 469,200                472,230           (3,030)              ‐0.6% 536,744               (67,544)             ‐12.6%
Total Fares Collected 829,512$              799,430$          30,082$            3.8% 915,888$              (86,376)$            ‐9.4%

Expenses
Total Expenses 11,791,663$         11,621,844$     (169,819)$         ‐1.5% 12,314,460$         (522,797)$          ‐4.2%

Miles
Revenue Miles 2,739,277 2,763,977 (24,700) ‐0.9% 2,902,180 (162,903) ‐5.6%
Deadhead Miles 574,785 562,806 11,979 2.1% 590,950 (16,165) ‐2.7%
Total Service Miles 3,314,062 3,326,783 (12,721) ‐0.4% 3,493,130 (179,068) ‐5.1%
Non‐Route Miles 10,921 14,653 (3,732) ‐25.5% 17,010 (6,089) ‐35.8%
Total Miles 3,324,983 3,341,436 (16,453) ‐0.5% 3,510,140 (185,157) ‐5.3%

Revenue Hours 206,751 211,730 (4,979) ‐2.4% 222,320 (15,569) ‐7.0%
Service Hours 243,533 247,385 (3,851) ‐1.6% 259,750 (16,217) ‐6.2%

Notes:  Prior year amount may vary due to corrections made after the publication.

March YTD Variance Variance



21

Performance Indicators

Current Month March 2018 FY19 YTD FY18 YTD

1. Ridership 46,181                 48,693              406,935               415,853              

2. Demand 60,827                 63,961              538,393               551,726              

3. Cancellations 11,437                 11,768              101,642               105,321              

4. No‐Shows 3,209                   3,500                29,809                 30,541                

5. Passengers per Revenue Hour 2.01                     1.96                  1.97                     1.96                    

6. Passengers per Service Hour 1.72                     1.69                  1.67                     1.68                    

7. Revenue per Trip 2.21$                   2.17$                1.01$                   2.07$                  

8. Cost per Trip 33.63$                 40.64$              31.08$                 30.04$                

9. Vehicles Operated in Maximum Service 120                      121                   122                      126                     

10. Trip Time,Sun Tran 87.64% 89.25% 86.68% 88.92%

11. Trip Time 110% + 5 Minutes 92.86% 92.89% 91.15% 92.70%

12. Pick‐Ups 95.47% 94.98% 95.69% 94.99%

13. Pick‐Ups Before Significantly Late 99.97% 99.93% 99.95%   99.95%

Notes:  Prior year amount may vary due to corrections made after the publication.

System Indicator



47

Appendix



APPENDIX A



Ridership

24

Month to Date March
Current Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

Route Passengers
Full Fare 351,564 369,023 (17,459) ‐4.7% 447,180 (95,616) ‐21.4%
Economy Fare 441,906 520,481 (78,575) ‐15.1% 579,800 (137,894) ‐23.8%
Express Fare 16,064 16,606 (542) ‐3.3% 5,940 10,124 170.4%
Day Pass 56,126 78,829 (22,703) ‐28.8% 76,170 (20,044) ‐26.3%
Other   100,906 76,930 23,976 31.2% 74,530 26,376 35.4%

Route Revenue Passengers 966,566 1,061,869 (95,303) ‐9.0% 1,183,620 (217,054) ‐18.3%

Transfer Passengers 198,943 206,561 (7,618) ‐3.7% 287,620 (88,677) ‐30.8%
Children 5 and Under 20,858 26,573 (5,715) ‐21.5% 32,460 (11,602) ‐35.7%
PCA's 799 750 49 6.5% 720 79 11.0%

Other Route Passengers 220,600 233,884 (13,284) ‐5.7% 320,800 (100,200) ‐31.2%

Total Passengers 1,187,166 1,295,753 (108,587) ‐8.4% 1,504,420 (317,254) ‐21.1%

Month to Date
Current Prior Year Current Prior Year Current Prior Year

Weekdays 21 22 21 18 Weekdays 47,255 50,570
Saturdays 5 5 Saturdays 22,788 23,675
Sundays 5 4 Sundays 16,174 16,210
Holidays 0 0 Holidays 0 0

Total 31 31 Total 38,296 41,799

Year to Date
Current Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

Route Passengers
Full Fare 3,150,177 3,235,252 (85,075) ‐2.6% 3,365,450 (215,273) ‐6.4%
Economy Fare 4,075,125 4,697,440 (622,315) ‐13.2% 5,046,280 (971,155) ‐19.2%
Express Fare 137,890 144,540 (6,650) ‐4.6% 200,080 (62,190) ‐31.1%
Day Pass 631,587 755,245 (123,658) ‐16.4% 796,120 (164,533) ‐20.7%
Other   813,681 633,914 179,767 28.4% 648,500 165,181 25.5%

Route Revenue Passengers 8,808,460 9,466,391 (657,931) ‐7.0% 10,056,430 (1,247,970) ‐12.4%

Transfer Passengers 1,828,776 1,868,453 (39,677) ‐2.1% 2,024,640 (195,864) ‐9.7%
Children 5 and Under 207,233 248,487 (41,254) ‐16.6% 265,460 (58,227) ‐21.9%
PCA's 6,323 6,946 (623) ‐9.0% 7,490 (1,167) ‐15.6%

Other Route Passengers 2,042,332 2,123,886 (81,554) ‐3.8% 2,297,590 (255,258) ‐11.1%

Total Passengers 10,850,792 11,590,277 (739,485) ‐6.4% 12,354,020 (1,503,228) ‐12.2%

Year to Date
Current Prior Year Current Prior Year Current Prior Year

Weekdays 190 190 152 143 Weekdays 48,728 52,176
Saturdays 39 40 Saturdays 22,841 24,110
Sundays 40 39 Sundays 15,851 16,477
Holidays 5 5 Holidays 13,509 13,969

Total 274 274 Total 39,601 42,300

Notes:  Prior year amount may vary due to corrections made after the publication.

Calendar Days School Days Average Route Ridership

March Variance Variance

March YTD Variance Variance

Calendar Days School Days Average Route Ridership

March YTD



Annual Ridership

25

Current  July August September October November December January February March April May June YTD 
Year 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 FY 2019

Fixed Routes 1,087,918 1,319,907 1,208,944 1,306,685 1,226,748 1,122,017 1,196,247 1,089,773 1,174,296 10,732,535

Express Routes 12,556 15,059 12,870 15,090 12,710 10,470 13,944 12,688 12,870 118,257

Total 1,100,474 1,334,966 1,221,814 1,321,775 1,239,458 1,132,487 1,210,191 1,102,461 1,187,166 0 0 0 10,850,792

Previous July August September October November December January February March April May June YTD 
Year 2017 2017 2018 2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 FY 2018

Fixed Routes 1,093,034 1,377,099 1,333,552 1,377,877 1,306,403 1,221,747 1,274,138 1,201,280 1,281,359 11,466,489

Express Routes 12,821 16,600 14,085 15,215 12,888 10,927 13,752 13,106 14,394 123,788

Total 1,105,855 1,393,699 1,347,637 1,393,092 1,319,291 1,232,674 1,287,890 1,214,386 1,295,753 0 0 0 11,590,277

Variance July August September October November December January February March April May June YTD FY 2018

Fixed Routes (5,116) (57,192) (124,608) (71,192) (79,655) (99,730) (77,891) (111,507) (107,063) 0 0 0 (733,954)

Express Routes (265) (1,541) (1,215) (125) (178) (457) 192 (418) (1,524) 0 0 0 (5,531)

Total (5,381) (58,733) (125,823) (71,317) (79,833) (100,187) (77,699) (111,925) (108,587) 0 0 0 (739,485)

% Variance July August September October November December January February March April May June YTD FY 2018

Fixed Routes ‐0.5% ‐4.2% ‐9.3% ‐5.2% ‐6.1% ‐8.2% ‐6.1% ‐9.3% ‐8.4%       ‐6.4%

Express Routes ‐2.1% ‐9.3% ‐8.6% ‐0.8% ‐1.4% ‐4.2% 1.4% ‐3.2% ‐10.6%       ‐4.5%

Total ‐0.5% ‐4.2% ‐9.3% ‐5.1% ‐6.1% ‐8.1% ‐6.0% ‐9.2% ‐8.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% ‐6.4%

July August September October November December January February March April May June YTD 
Totals By: 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 FY 2019

Weekday 920,905 1,179,762 1,005,401 1,167,136 1,067,805 925,432 1,047,254 952,342 992,359 9,258,396

Saturday 87,288 90,761 117,296 90,882 93,754 115,906 90,176 90,816 113,938 890,817

Sunday 75,565 64,443 81,355 63,757 66,611 82,018 60,111 59,303 80,870 634,033

Holiday 16,716 0 17,761 0 11,288 9,131 12,649 0 0 67,545

Total 1,100,474 1,334,966 1,221,813 1,321,775 1,239,458 1,132,487 1,210,191 1,102,461 1,187,166 0 0 0 10,850,791

July August September October November December January February March April May June YTD 
Averages By: 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2020 2019 2019 2019 FY 2019

Weekday 43,853 51,294 52,916 50,745 50,848 46,272 47,602 47,617 47,255 48,728

Saturday 21,822 22,690 23,459 22,720 23,439 23,181 22,544 22,704 22,788 22,841

Sunday 15,113 16,111 16,271 15,939 16,653 16,404 15,028 14,826 16,174 15,851

Holiday 16,716 0 17,762 0 11,288 9,131 12,649 0 0 13,509

Total 35,499 43,063 40,727 42,638 40,954 36,532 39,038 39,374 38,296 39,601



Ridership Charts

26

Total Ridership Average Ridership by Day

Passengers per Hour Passengers per Mile

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

1,600,000

FY 19 FY 18

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

Weekdays Saturday Sunday Holiday

 ‐

 5.00

 10.00

 15.00

 20.00

 25.00

FY 19 FY 18

 ‐

 0.50

 1.00

 1.50

 2.00

 2.50

FY 19 FY 18



Revenue

27



Pass Revenue

28

Month to Date

Current Prior Year Amount Percent Current Prior Year Amount Percent

Period Passes

Day Pass 8,255 7,432 823 11.1% 7945.48 29,728 (21,783) ‐73.3%

Discounted Day Pass 10,384 12,599 (2,215) ‐17.6% 19486.24 25,828 (6,342) ‐24.6%

3‐Day Full Fare Pass 790 353 437 123.8% 7439.11 3,466 3,973 114.6%

30‐Day Full Fare 3,935 5,235 (1,300) ‐24.8% 180960.07 244,697 (63,737) ‐26.0%

30‐Day Economy 6,623 7,923 (1,300) ‐16.4% 134413.73 175,104 (40,690) ‐23.2%

30‐Day Express 409 386 23 6.0% 25420.27 24,143 1,277 5.3%

SummerGo Youth Pass 0 0 0 0.0% 0.00 0 (220) 0.0%

Annual 0 1 (1) ‐100.0% (134.85) 428 (563) ‐131.5%

College Pass 20 6 14 233.3% (8678.44) 893 (9,571) ‐1072.1%

College Express Pass 4 0 4 0.0% 302.69 0 303 0.0%

Subtotal 30,420 33,935 (3,515) ‐10.4% 367,154 504,286 137,132 27.2%

Stored Value

Full Fare Stored Value 35,005 33,322 1,683 5.1% 56,008 53,315 2,693 5.1%

Economy Stored Value 59,838 47,573 12,265 25.8% 44,879 35,680 9,199 25.8%

Express Stored Value 1,283 1,427 ‐144 ‐10.1% 3,015 3,353 ‐338 ‐10.1%

Subtotal 96,126 82,322 13,804 16.8% 103,902 92,348 11,553 12.5%

Total 126,546 116,257 10,289 8.9% 471,056 596,635 ‐125,579 ‐21.0%

Year to Date

Current Prior Year Amount Percent Current Prior Year Amount Percent

Period Passes

Day Pass 58,386 51,962 6,424 12.4% 50,797 199,557 (148,759) ‐74.5%

Discounted Day Pass 108,736 140,765 (32,029) ‐22.8% 208,497 283,504 (75,007) ‐26.5%

3‐Day Full Fare Pass 5,493 1,836 3,657 199.2% 51,508 17,872 33,637 188.2%

30‐Day Full Fare 36,482 36,131 351 1.0% 1,677,374 1,618,377 58,997 3.6%

30‐Day Economy 50,772 60,667 (9,895) ‐16.3% 1,017,270 1,158,707 (141,437) ‐12.2%

30‐Day Express 3,395 3,611 (216) ‐6.0% 211,674 214,250 (2,576) ‐1.2%

SummerGo Youth Pass (11) 2 (13) ‐650.0% (1,160) 87 (1,246) ‐4632.7%

Annual 41 41 0 0.0% 18,125 18,067 58 0.3%

College Pass 2,840 2,663 177 6.6% 618,312 513,394 104,918 20.4%

College Express Pass 228 245 (17) ‐6.9% 62,629 85,097 (22,469) ‐26.4%

Subtotal 266,362 297,923 (31,561) ‐10.0% 3,915,026 4,108,911 (193,885) 17.8%

Stored Value

Full Fare Stored Value 300,250 288,392 11,858 4.1% 480,400 442,285 38,115 8.6%

Economy Stored Value 494,910 385,206 109,704 28.5% 371,183 251,390 119,793 47.7%

Express Stored Value 12,614 11,082 1,532 13.8% 29,643 25,338 4,305 17.0%

Subtotal 807,774 684,680 123,094 17.0% 881,225 719,013 162,213 28.0%

Total 1,074,136 982,603 91,533 8.2% 4,796,252 4,827,924 ‐31,672 19.1%

Notes:  Amount may vary due to corrections made after the publication.

Pass Revenue ($'s)

March Variance

March Variance

March Variance

Passes Sold (Units)

Passes Sold (Units) Pass Revenue ($'s)

March Variance



Expenses

29

Month to Date Monthly
Current Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

Operator Wages 1,377,334$            1,746,043$            368,709$             21.1% 1,428,067$              50,733$                   3.6%
Maintenance Wages 343,024 437,769                 94,745 21.6% 413,938                   70,913 17.1%
Salaries 340,044 420,955                 80,911 19.2% 381,073                   41,030 10.8%
Fringe Benefits 1,135,709 1,645,190              509,481 31.0% 1,045,494                (90,215) ‐8.6%
Services 343,178 426,154                 82,976 19.5% 472,075                   128,897 27.3%
Utilities 76,550 80,582                   4,032 5.0% 78,917                     2,367 3.0%
Vehicle Maintenance 329,897 178,591                 (151,306) ‐84.7% 341,161                   11,264 3.3%
Materials and Supplies 62,246 114,025                 51,779 45.4% 135,520                   73,274 54.1%
CNG Fuel 76,985 36,879                   (40,106) ‐108.8% 87,884                     10,899 12.4%
Diesel Fuel 316,439 772,766                 456,327 59.1% 379,358                   62,919 16.6%
Unleaded Fuel 9,981 9,613                     (368) ‐3.8% 11,475                     1,494 13.0%
Capital Outlay 0 ‐                         0 0.0% 0.0%
Insurance 33,963 440,759                 406,796 128,780                   94,817 73.6%
Labor Credits/Expense Transfers (3,013) (11,248)                  (8,235) 73.2% 503,033                   506,047 100.6%

Total Expenses 4,442,337$            6,298,078$            1,855,741$          29.5% 5,406,775$              964,438$                 17.8%

Year to Date Annual
Current Year Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

Operator Wages 13,350,423$          13,745,596$          395,173$             2.9% 17,136,800$            3,786,377$              22.1%
Maintenance Wages 3,550,079              3,558,375              8,296                   0.2% 4,967,250                1,417,171                28.5%
Salaries 3,470,612              3,437,055              (33,557)                ‐1.0% 4,572,880                1,102,268                24.1%
Fringe Benefits 9,583,420              9,348,697              (234,723)              ‐2.5% 12,545,930              2,962,510                23.6%
Services 3,200,848              3,413,753              212,905               6.2% 5,664,900                2,464,052                43.5%
Utilities 710,547                 730,694                 20,147                 2.8% 947,000                   236,453                   25.0%
Vehicle Maintenance 3,282,040              4,041,580              759,540               18.8% 4,093,930                811,890                   19.8%
Materials and Supplies 902,241                 521,211                 (381,030)              ‐73.1% 1,626,240                723,999                   44.5%
CNG Fuel 578,072                 362,033                 (216,039)              ‐59.7% 1,054,610                476,538                   45.2%
Diesel Fuel 3,232,621              3,403,294              170,673               5.0% 4,552,300                1,319,679                29.0%
Unleaded Fuel 95,617                   82,457                   (13,160)                ‐16.0% 137,700                   42,083                     30.6%
Capital Outlay 462                        15,254                   14,792                 97.0% ‐                           (462)                        
Insurance 684,979                 1,356,659              671,680               49.5% 1,545,360                860,381                   55.7%
Labor Credits/Expense Transfers (43,949)                  (55,999)                  (12,050)                21.5% 6,036,400                6,080,349                100.7%

Total Expenses 42,598,013$          43,960,659$          1,362,646$          3.1% 64,881,300$            22,283,287$            34.3%

Notes:  Prior year amount may vary due to corrections made after the publication.

March YTD Variance Budget Balance

March Variance Variance



Preventable Accidents 

30

Preventable Non‐Preventable Total Preventable Non‐Preventable Total
July 5 16 21 4 21 25
August 4 11 15 4 17 21
September 6 15 21 5 16 21
October 6 10 16 6 17 23
November 4 11 15 9 17 26
December 6 9 15 6 18 24
January 4 10 14 8 16 24
February 4 4 8 11 13 24
March 4 12 16 8 26 34
April 4 16 20
May 7 14 21
June 7 11 18

Preventable Accident per 100,000 Miles

Accidents per 100,000 Miles

FY 2019 FY 2018

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

Preventable FY 19 Preventable FY 18



Customer Service 

31



APPENDIX B



33

Ridership

Month to Date March
Current Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

Route Passengers 88,786 91,690 (2,904) ‐3.2% 90,200 (1,414) ‐1.6%

Month to Date
Current Prior Year Current Prior Year Current Prior Year

21 22 18 18 3,164 3,165
10 9 2,233 2,451
0 0 0 0
31 31 2,864 2,958

Year to Date March YTD
Current Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

Route Passengers 714,249 713,521 728 0.1% 704,400 9,849 1.4%

Year to Date
Current Prior Year Current Prior Year Current Prior Year

190 190 149 143 3,017 3,020
79 79 1,742 1,729
5 5 659 355

274 274 2,607 2,613

Notes:  Prior year amount may vary due to corrections made after the publication.

Weekdays
Weekends
Holidays
Total

Weekdays
Weekends
Holidays
Total

Total

Weekdays
Weekends
Holidays
Total

Calendar Days School Days Average Route Ridership

March Variance Variance

March YTD Variance Variance

School Days Average Route Ridership

Weekdays
Weekends
Holidays



34

Ridership Charts



Daily Passenger Counts

35



36

Revenue



37

Expenses

Month to Date Monthly
Current Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

Contracts 43,640                90,332$             46,692$             51.7% 72,512$             (28,872)             ‐39.8%
Administration Wages 8,570                  17,255              8,685                50.3% 20,825 (12,255)             ‐58.8%
Maintenance Wages 14,755                22,953              8,198                35.7% 27,560 (12,805)             ‐46.5%
Operations Wages 36,647                69,459              32,812              47.2% 78,870 (42,223)             ‐53.5%
Fringe Benefits 64,562                17,653              (46,909)             ‐265.7% 47,954 16,608              34.6%
Taxes ‐                      9,592                9,592                0.0% 0 ‐                     0.0%
Staffing Costs 280                      409                    129                    31.5% 83 197                    237.3%
Supplies 21,353                363                    (20,990)             ‐5782.4% 4,325 17,028              393.7%
Information Technology ‐                      1,687                1,687                100.0% 3,413 (3,413)               ‐100.0%
Maintenance Supplies 22,553                22,642              89                      0.4% 35,875 (13,322)             ‐37.1%
NRV Maintenance 594                      404                    (190)                   ‐47.0% 667 (73)                     ‐10.9%
Fuel 573                      590                    17                      2.9% 667 (94)                     ‐14.1%
Utilities 24,607                21,619              (2,988)               ‐13.8% 29,976 (5,369)               ‐17.9%
Public Education/Marketing (18,445)               18,678              37,123              198.8% 8,333 (26,778)             ‐321.3%
Miscellaneous 18,673                4,803                (13,870)             ‐288.8% 37,656 (18,983)             ‐50.4%

Total Expenses 238,362$           298,438$          60,075$             20.1% 368,716$          (130,354)$         ‐35.4%

Year to Date Annual
Current Year Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

Contracts 516,540$           811,386$          294,847$          36.3% $870,140 353,601$          40.6%
Administration Wages 166,075 171,055 4,980                2.9% 249,900            83,825              33.5%
Maintenance Wages 226,294 214,267 (12,027)             ‐5.6% 330,720            104,426            31.6%
Operations Wages 658,563 624,596 (33,967)             ‐5.4% 946,440            287,877            30.4%
Fringe Benefits 309,544 285,828 (23,716)             ‐8.3% 575,450            265,906            46.2%
Taxes 0 79,885 79,885              0.0% ‐                     ‐                     0.0%
Staffing Costs 1,270 6,854 5,584                81.5% 1,000                (270)                   ‐27.0%
Supplies 50,921 34,482 (16,439)             ‐47.7% 51,900              979                    1.9%
Information Technology 49,075 39,866 (9,209)               ‐23.1% 40,960              (8,115)               ‐19.8%
Maintenance Supplies 159,489 145,397 (14,092)             ‐9.7% 430,500            271,011            63.0%
NRV Maintenance 8,891 10,605 1,714                16.2% 8,000                (891)                   ‐11.1%
Fuel 5,115 5,704 589                    10.3% 8,000                2,885                36.1%
Utilities 246,088 237,911 (8,177)               ‐3.4% 359,710            113,622            31.6%
Public Education/Marketing 41,545 90,384 48,839              54.0% 100,000            58,455              58.5%
Miscellaneous 245,248 116,801 (128,447)          ‐110.0% 451,870            206,622            45.7%

Total Expenses 2,684,660$        2,875,021$       190,362$          6.6% 4,424,590$       1,739,930$       39.3%

Notes:  Prior year amount may vary due to correctLons made after the publication.

March Variance Budget Balance

March Variance Variance



38

Preventable Accidents



39

Customer Service



APPENDIX C



41

Ridership

Month to Date March
Current Prior Year Amount  Percent Budget Amount Percent

Passengers
Regular Fare Passengers 12,649 12,229 420 3.4% 11,160 1,489 13.3%
Economy Fare Passengers 31,076 33,822 (2,746) ‐8.1% 30,740 336 1.1%

Revenue Passengers 43,725 46,051 (2,326) ‐5.1% 41,900 1,825 4.4%

Other Passengers (PCA) 2,456 2,642 (186) ‐7.0% 2,180 276 12.7%

Total Passengers 46,181 48,693 (2,512) ‐5.2% 44,080 2,101 4.8%

Month to Date
Current Prior Year Current Prior Year

21 22 1,894 1,934
5 5 666 749
5 4 615 601
0 0 0 0

31 31 1,490 1,571

Year to Date March YTD
Current Prior Year Amount  Percent Budget Amount Percent

Passengers
Regular Fare Passengers 108,768 103,395 5,373 5.2% 113,460 (4,692) ‐4.1%
Economy Fare Passengers 277,222 291,278 (14,056) ‐4.8% 312,530 (35,308) ‐11.3%

Revenue Passengers 385,990 394,673 (8,683) ‐2.2% 425,990 (40,000) ‐9.4%

Other Passengers (PCA) 20,945 21,180 (235) ‐1.1% 22,170 (1,225) ‐5.5%

Total Passengers 406,935 415,853 (8,918) ‐2.1% 448,160 (41,225) ‐9.2%

Year to Date
Current Prior Year Current Prior Year

190 190 1,871 1,910
39 40 634 644
40 39 598 623
5 5 403 397

274 274 1,485 1,518

Notes:  Prior year amount may vary due to corrections made after the publication.

March Variance Variance

Calendar Days Average Route Ridership

Weekdays Weekdays
Saturdays Saturdays
Sundays Sundays
Holidays Holidays

Total Total

March YTD Variance Variance

Calendar Days Average Route Ridership

Weekdays Weekdays

Total Total

Saturdays Saturdays
Sundays Sundays
Holidays Holidays



41

Annual Ridership

42

CURRENT JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE YTD 
YEAR 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 FY 2019

Demand Response 45,265 49,303           43,848              49,425         44,204              41,457            45,454        41,798           46,181       ‐            ‐            ‐            406,935

TOTAL 45,265 49,303           43,848              49,425         44,204              41,457            45,454        41,798           46,181       ‐            ‐            ‐            406,935

PREVIOUS JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE YTD 
YEAR 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 FY 2018

Demand Response 44,044 49,822 46,289 48,922 45,159 43,485 45,971 43,468 48,693 46,601 48,646 46,175 557,275

TOTAL 44,044 49,822 46,289 48,922 45,159 43,485 45,971 43,468 48,693 46,601 48,646 46,175 557,275

VARIANCE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE YTD FY 2019

Demand Response 1,221 (519) (2,441) 503 (955) (2,028) (517) (1,670)            (2,512)       ‐            ‐            ‐            (6,406)

TOTAL 1,221 (519) (2,441) 503 (955) (2,028) (517) (1,670)            (2,512)       ‐            ‐            ‐            (6,406)

% VARIANCE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE YTD FY 2019

Demand Response 2.8% ‐1.0% ‐5.3% 1.0% ‐2.1% ‐4.7% ‐1.1% ‐3.8% ‐5.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% ‐1.1%

                         

TOTAL 2.8% ‐1.0% ‐5.3% 1.0% ‐2.1% ‐4.7% ‐1.1% ‐3.8% ‐5.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% ‐1.1%

JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE YTD 
TOTALS BY: 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 FY 2019

Weekday 39,352 44,143 37,103 44,490 38,694 35,089 40,492 36,894 39,776 356,033

Saturday 2,415 2,664 3,215 2,588 2,623 3,056 2,439 2,542 3,332 24,874

Sunday 2,927 2,496 3,076 2,347 2,442 2,993 2,299 2,362 3,073 24,015

Holiday 571 0 454 0 445 319 224 0 0 2,013

TOTAL 45,265 49,303           43,848              49,425         44,204              41,457            45,454        41,798           46,181       ‐            ‐            ‐            406,935

JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE YTD 
AVERAGES BY: 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 FY 2019

Weekday 1,874 1,919 1,953 1,934 1,843 1,754 1,841 1,845 1,894 1,874

Saturday 604 666 643 647 656 611 610 636 666 638

Sunday 585 624 615 587 611 599 575 591 615 600

Holiday 571 0 454 0 445 319 224 0 403

TOTAL 1,460 1,590 1,462 1,594 1,473 1,337 1,466 1,493 1,490 1,485

Notes:  Prior year amount may vary due to corrections made after the publication.



43

Ridership Charts



44

Revenue



45

Expenses

Month to Date Monthly 
Current Year Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

OPERATOR WAGES 576,550$             726,817$             150,267$             20.7% 506,578$             506,578$             ‐13.8%
OTHER BU WAGES 107,448 134,900 27,452 20.4% 97,196 97,196                 ‐10.5%
SALARIES 94,575 119,982 25,407 21.2% 91,326 91,326                 ‐3.6%
FRINGE BENEFITS 253,384 280,323 26,940 9.6% 222,859 222,859               ‐13.7%
SERVICES 51,288 55,074 3,786 6.9% 78,446 78,446                 34.6%
CONTRACT VEHICLE MAINT. 156,677 132,707 (23,969) ‐18.1% 176,792 176,792               11.4%
UTILITIES 13,287 16,585 3,298 19.9% 17,987 17,987                 26.1%
MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 5,713 47,298 41,585 87.9% 14,883 14,883                 61.6%
DIESEL FUEL ‐                           821 821 100.0% 208 208                      100.0%
UNLEADED FUEL 150,204 197,528 47,324 24.0% 112,125 112,125               ‐34.0%
CAPITAL OUTLAY ‐                           ‐                           ‐                           0.0% 7,500 7,500                   100.0%
LIABILITY INSURANCE  37,751                 121,044 83,293 68.8% 42,374 42,374                 10.9%
LABOR CREDITS/EXP TRANSFERS ‐                           ‐                           ‐                           0.0% ‐                           ‐                           0.0%

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,446,876$          1,833,080$         386,204$            21.1% 1,368,273$         1,368,273$         ‐5.7%

Year to Date YTD
Current Year Prior Year Amount Percent Budget Amount Percent

OPERATOR WAGES 4,467,508$          4,421,974$          (45,534)$              ‐1.0% 6,078,940$          1,611,432$          26.5%
OTHER BU WAGES 838,098 789,631 (48,467) ‐6.1% 1,166,350 328,252               28.1%
SALARIES 799,773 793,855 (5,918) ‐0.7% 1,095,910 296,137               27.0%
FRINGE BENEFITS 2,066,992 2,042,299 (24,693) ‐1.2% 2,674,310 607,318               22.7%
SERVICES 568,189 585,430 17,242 2.9% 941,350 373,161               39.6%
CONTRACT VEHICLE MAINT. 1,440,600 1,467,834 27,234 1.9% 2,121,500 680,900               32.1%
UTILITIES 117,767 127,194 9,427 7.4% 215,840 98,073                 45.4%
MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 71,585 96,227 24,641 25.6% 178,590 107,005               59.9%
DIESEL FUEL 1,009                   2,865 1,856 64.8% 2,500 1,491                   59.6%
UNLEADED FUEL 1,077,081 923,829 (153,251) ‐16.6% 1,345,500 268,419               19.9%
CAPITAL OUTLAY ‐                           7,627                   7,627                   100.0% 90,000 90,000                 100.0%
LIABILITY INSURANCE  343,061               363,078 20,017 5.5% 508,490 165,429               32.5%
LABOR CREDITS/EXP TRANSFERS ‐                           ‐                           ‐                           0.0%                       ‐ ‐                           0.0%

TOTAL EXPENSES 11,791,663$        11,621,844$       (169,819)$           ‐1.5% 16,419,280$       4,627,617$         28.2%

Notes:  Prior year amount may vary due to corrections made after the publication.
 

March Variance Variance

March YTD Variance Variance



46

Preventable Accidents



47

Customer Service



47

Glossary of TermsGlossary of Terms

48

Cancellations (Sun Van)

Complaints per 100,000 Passengers Equals total complaints divided by total passengers times 100,000.

Cost per Mile Equals total operating expenditures divided by total miles.

Cost per Service Hour Equals total operating expenditures divided by total service hours.

Cost per Trip (Sun Van) Total operating expenses divided by total trips.

Deadhead Miles and Hours

Denial (Sun Van)

MDBF (Sun Link)

No‐Shows (Sun Van)

the scheduled pick‐up time.

On‐Time Sun Tran: A bus may be up to 5 minutes late, but less than 1 minute early and be classified as on‐time.

Sun Link: Regularly scheduled streetcars arriving at their last station stop less than six minutes behind schedule.

Sun Van: The vehicle is considered on‐time if it arrives between 15 minutes before or 15 minutes after the 
requested pick‐up time.

Optional ADA (Sun Van)

Passengers per Mile Equals total passengers divided by total revenue miles.

Passengers per Service Hour Equals total ridership divided by total service hours.

Passenger Revenue Equals revenue collected from passengers (includes farebox revenue and revenue from pass sales).

When the passenger does not board the Sun Van vehicle when the vehicle arrives at the pick‐up location within the 
pick‐up window and the driver waits two minutes, or when the customer does not cancel the reservation within two 

Passenger trips outside 3/4‐mile corridors around Sun Tran fixed routes or beyond times availbale on a Sun Tran fixed 
route, a same day request, and will calls.

Mean distance between failure is the distance between failures of any of the major sub‐systems of the streetcar that 
cause significant delays or disruptions of service and/or cause the streetcar to be removed from service.

When the passenger or the passenger's representative cancels the reservation two or more hours prior to the 
beginning of the scheduled pick‐up time.

An ADA‐eligible trip requested that is not scheduled by Sun Van within the permissible scheduled window of one hour 
before or one hour after the requested pick up time.

Miles that a vehicle travels when out of revenue service. Deadhead includes leaving or returning to the garage or yard 
facility, changing routes or when there is no expectation of carrying revenue passengers. Deadhead does not include 
operator or maintenance training.



48

Glossary of Terms

Pick‐Ups Before Significantly Late (Sun Van) Pick‐ups 30 minutes outside of the originally scheduled pick‐up window.

Revenue Miles and Hours

Revenue per Mile Equals total passenger revenue divided by total miles.

Revenue per Passenger Equals total passenger revenue divided by total passengers.

Revenue per Service Hour Equals passenger revenue divided by service hours.

Revenue per Trip (Sun Van) Total passenger revenue divided by trips.

Ridership (Unlinked Passenger Trips)

Road Calls

Service Miles and Hours

Total Demand (Sun Van) Total number of passenger trips requested.

Total Cost per Passenger Equals total operating expenditures divided by total passengers.

Trip (Sun Van)

Trip Time (Sun Van) The percentage of ADA trips with a trip time less than the comparable Sun Tran fixed route trip.

Trip Time 110% + 5 Minutes (Sun Van) When an ADA trip length exceed 110% + 5 minutes of the comparable Sun Tran fixed route trip.

Miles and hours that vehicles travel while in revenue service plus deadhead miles/hours. Service miles/hours does not 
include operator or maintenance traing.

A one‐way trip taken by an ADA paratransit‐eligible passenger from the pick‐up point to the destination (excludes PCA's 
and companions).

The miles and hours that vehicles travel while in revenue service. Vehicle revenue miles and hours (VRM and VRH) 
include layover/recovery time but exclude deadhead, operator training and maintenance testing.

Equals Total passengers actually transported. A one‐way trip taken by an ADA paratransit‐eligible passenger, a personal 
care attendant (PCA) or companions from the pick‐up point to the destination.

Ridership (Unlinked Passenger Trips) Sun 
Van

The number of passengers who board public transportation vehicles. Passengers are counted each time they board  
vehicles no matter how many vehicles they use to travel from their origin to their destination.

A road call is defined as a mechanical failure of a vehicle in revenue service that necessitates removing the vehicle from 
service until repairs are made.

Glossary of Terms

49




